
 

 

 -1- 

 

 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
APRIL 24, 2014 

 

Present: 

 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Freddy Fisikelli, SWR Councilman  

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary          Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner  General Public: See Attached List 

Thomas Good, Commissioner       

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

       

Absent: 

 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:04 A.M, followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance.    

  

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the March 27th, 2014, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and was carried unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. VACATION REQUEST OF SWMA FOR RODRIGUEZ FAMILY GROUP FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5340 HAWKHURST AVENUE, SWR 

 

District Director Hart stated that South Broward Drainage District (SBDD) received a 

request to vacate the Surface Water Management Area (SWMA) that was previously 

designated and recorded under OR Book 50522, Pages 943-946, Broward County 

Records for the property located at 5340 Hawkhurst Avenue, SWR.  The property had 

designated a SWMA in accordance with the District’s Criteria which requires 20% of the 



 

 

 -2- 

 

property to be designated as a SWMA at elevation 5.0’ or an equivalent storage area.  

The property owner would like to re-designate the area that they had previously recorded, 

and dedicate a new SWMA over the property to comply with the 20% SWMA 

requirement.  SBDD staff has reviewed the request and has no objections.  There are no 

financial impacts, other than SBDD administrative costs; all other costs will be incurred 

by the property owner. 

 

The request is for SBDD to vacate and release its interest in the Surface Water 

Management Area on the property located at 5340 Hawkhurst Avenue, Southwest 

Ranches, FL 33332, as described in the “Release and Vacation of Surface Water 

Management Area Designation” and recorded under OR Book 50522, Pages 943-946, 

BCR.  This request is subject to the dedication of a new Surface Water Management Area 

in accordance with SBDD Criteria. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion for approval of the vacation request of SWMA 

by the Rodriguez Family Group as submitted.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Goggin and was carried unanimously. 

 

B. REQUEST TO USE SBDD LAKE PROPERTY FOR KAYAK AGAINST CANCER 

EVENT 

 
District Director Hart stated that South Broward Drainage District received a request 

from Mr. Charles H. Noonan to use a SBDD lake property for a Kayak Against Cancer 

(KAC) kick-off event to be held on Saturday, May 17, 2014.  The actual fund raising 

event for KAC will take place on June 14th at Fort Lauderdale beach and will be the 14th 

year that KAC has organized and run this event while raising over $200,000 for the 

American Cancer Society (ACS). 

 

The kick-off event will be held at Bokampers Restaurant located at 15500 SW 29th Street, 

Miramar Florida, and the kayak racing would take place in the lake behind Bokampers 

Restaurant.  The KAC event is part of the ACS’s Relay for Life.  They will have life 

guards, safety mechanisms and will be providing the District with insurance and 

indemnification.  There will be no financial impacts, other than SBDD administrative 

costs. 

 

This is to request approval for Mr. Charles Noonan and the Kayak Against Cancer event, 

under the umbrella of the American Cancer Society Relay for Life, to hold a charity 

kayaking event in SBDD’s lake property located behind Bokampers Restaurant at 15500 

SW 29th Street, Miramar, Fl. on May 17, 2014.   

Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion for approval of the use of the SBDD lake 
property for Kayak Against Cancer (KAC) kick-off event with the condition that the 
waiver specifically include South Broward Drainage District by name.  Motion was 
seconded by Vice Chair Ryan. 
 
In discussion, Mr. Charles Noonan, founder and coordinator of the Kayak Against Cancer 
event, answered questions regarding the race and clarified the issue on the liability waiver 
to the Board members.  He said that they have always had a liability waiver and it is 



 

 

 -3- 

 

written to any entity that they may have; and he assured the Board that the insurance will 
include SBDD as the District entity that oversees that body of water.  
 
Commissioner Goggin asked Mr. Noonan what his thought process was regarding safety.  
Mr. Noonan replied that there will be experienced kayakers on the water, one large 5-
person raft with an electric motor on it, so that if anyone has any issues getting out of the 
water, they would be right there; and that he is also a rescue diver and will have his gear 
with him.  He said that the actual KAC event is done on the ocean with waves and that the 
kayak’s being provided are very stable.    
 
The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 
 

C. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-02 – UPDATE TO THE DISTRICT’S DRUG FREE 

WORKPLACE POLICY, INCLUDING A NEW PROVISION FOR 

COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENSE (CDL) HOLDERS 

 

District Director Hart stated that this item is a follow-up from last month’s Board 

meeting to request approval of proposed SBDD Resolution No. 2014-02 to update the 

South Broward Drainage District Employee Policy Manual for the purpose of updating 

the District’s Drug Free Workplace Policy, including the addition of a new provision for 

Commercial Driver License (CDL) holders.  The proposed changes will bring these 

policies in line with current Florida Statutes and Federal and State laws that are 

applicable to government employees. 

 

The proposed updates are consistent with the District’s current practices and will not 

result in any reductions or changes to SBDD employee benefits.  There are no financial 

impacts, other than SBDD administrative costs.  

 

Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion to approve Resolution 2014-02 – Update to the 

District’s Drug Free Workplace Policy, including a new provision for Commercial 

Driver’s License (CDL) holders.  Commissioner Goggin seconded the motion. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she wanted to feel comfortable that this is not 

going to be capricious; and will apply to the employees who are driving and have signed 

a waiver, and know coming in that they will be drug tested.   For all other employees, 

before they get drug tested, there would have to be cause.   

 

District Director Hart agreed with Commissioner Mersinger.  He said that the way the 

Policy is written, there has to be “reasonable suspicion” for drug testing; other than the 

District’s CDL drivers who are subject to random testing; but they will sign an agreement 

to that effect.  For all other employees, there has to be reasonable suspicion and there are 

guidelines that need to be followed. 

 

Commissioner Good commented that he does not know that the District can randomly 

drug test all CDL drivers.  He said that CDL drivers that transport the public, such as bus 

drivers, and/or mechanics that work on buses that transport the public, are subject to 

random drug testing.  He suggested that the District get better guidance from the FDOT 

Statutes or laws that govern the CDL license requirements and drug testing for drivers.  



 

 

 -4- 

 

 

District Director Hart said that he will review this with the District’s labor attorney.  He 

assured the Board that any time the District deals with this type of issue, or before any 

action is taken, he confers with SBDD’s attorney. 

 

Commissioner Good asked District Director Hart, “does the District perform drug tests 

when an accident occurs?”  District Director Hart replied that if there is an accident with 

injury the District does perform a drug test, because that is considered “reasonable 

cause”.  Commissioner Good also asked District Director Hart, “does the District perform 

a drug test if there is property damage?”  District Director Hart replied that in that 

situation, it would be a case-by-case determination.  Commissioner Good suggested that 

District Director Hart be consistent with the District’s drug testing.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 
D. OTHER 

 
  District Director Hart mentioned the following items: 
 

 Update to Hurricane Emergency Preparedness Response Procedures Manual – 
District Director Hart informed the Board that the District will be updating the 
Hurricane Emergency Preparedness Response Procedures Manual within the next 
month or so and asked the Board members to bring their manuals to next month’s 
Board meeting.   
 

 “Reducing Flooding on Commercial Properites” Summary Booklet – A Summary 
of the workshop presented by SBDD and AllState Resource Management at SBDD 
Headquarters on April 4th for commercial/industrial property owners was handed to 
the Board members.  Chair Hodges was on the panel for that workshop, and there 
were other Board members in attendance as well.  It was a 2-hour workshop geared to 
property managers for commercial/industrial properties.  District Director Hart 
commented that he thought it went well and that the feedback received was all 
positive; and that he expects to be presenting it again in the fall.      

 
 South Plantation High School Event – District Director Hart said that he will be 

attending an event tomorrow at South Plantation High School.  He commented that 
Commissioner Good had suggested that the District partner with South Plantation 
High School; and that they have an excellent Magnet Program for Environmental 
Engineering.  

 

Update on CIP – District Director Hart udated the Board on several Capital Improvement 

Plan (CIP) improvements that the District has completed or are in the process of completing.   

 
 He mentioned the following CIP projects that have been completed: 

 
o Pump conversion from oil cooled to water cooled.   
o Rebuilding of gear heads at the S4/5 and S2 pump stations.   
o The installation of the sluice gate at the S2 pump station.   
 



 

 

 -5- 

 

These are all important improvements.  Having placed the sluice gate at the S-2 pump 
station will allow the District to move water by gravity and will reduce the District’s 
dependence on their pumps; and should result in considerable savings as far as fuel 
and wear and tear on the engines.  

 
District Director Hart also mentioned that the District is moving forward with a 
number of other important CIP projects.  He said that the District will be advertising 
for bids for the installation of a pipe-liner at the Johnson Street/Palm Avenue Culvert.  
This will be a cost-share project with the City of Pembroke Pines, and he hopes to 
bring that forward for approval at a future Board meeting.   
 
In addition, the District has received quotes to rebuild the motor at the S1 pump 
station.  He said that the cost will be under the threshold for putting the project out for 
competitive bids; and that there are only two vendors that do that type of repair work.  
The District is also starting design work on some drainage improvements in SWR at 
S.W. 205th Avenue and S.W. 54th Place, which is part of the CIP.   
 
District Director Hart stated that the City of Pembroke Pines is continuing to stabilize 
the canal bank on Taft Street and that it should be completed within the next 45 days; 
and afterwards the District will be performing some additional excavation work on 
Canal 1, which is along University Drive.  There is also some other maintenance 
work involving the installation of erosion control material at different locations.   

 
05.   ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  
 

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON DRAFT AGREEMENT BETWEEN HOTWIRE 
COMMUNICATIONS, LTD, PEMBROKE FALLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, 
INC. AND SBDD REGARDING THE PERMITTED USE OF SBDD’S LAKE 
MAINTENANCE EASEMENTS 

 
 Attorney Bell said that he coordinated on the final draft of the Hotwire Agreement with the 

District’s outside attorney.  He said that Hotwire’s attorney was to give attorney Bell some 
comments by today’s meeting, but that was not done. Hotwire is looking further into whether 
or not the HOA has the right to grant Hotwire the authority to work in the easement.  Attorney 
Bell said that whether or not they have the authority, the way the easements are dedicated to 
the District, they still need the District’s approval.  At this point, Attorney Bell is looking for 
comments from the Board on the draft Agreement as it has been prepared and proposed, 
including the $500 per lineal mile charge, and the other provisions. 

 
 Discussion ensued among the Board of Commissioners.   
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh commented that District Director Hart gave her a tour of a couple of 

the lakes in Pembroke Falls where the trenching and boxes were placed.  She said that had she 
not known that it had been trenched, and had she not been specifically searching for it, she 
would have not noticed it, because it has been in for a while, and the grass has grown in.  She 
did however, notice the huge amount of litter that is in the one lake.  She commented that she 
cannot believe that Pembroke Falls does not have a crew to clean it up.   

 
 Several items in the Hotwire Agreement were discussed, and each Commissioner suggested 

changes on some of the wording to the agreement.  As far as the bond, it was agreed that if 



 

 

 -6- 

 

there was ever any sort of liability issue that arose, a $100,000 bond will not cover the cost of 
legal fees, etc. for the whole community.   

 
 In discussion, there were concerns regarding the trenches being excavated two feet deep, and 

Hotwire not following their own criteria.  According to Commissioner Minnaugh, after 
touring the lakes, she does not believe the trenches were dug down two feet deep.  She 
commented that if they are not going to comply, then they should provide the District with the 
as-builts showing all appurtances, and the location of the wires; and they should comply with 
the proper depth as described in paragraph #20 of the draft Agreement.  

 
 The following recommendations were suggested by the Board of Commissioners: 
 

 The District get proof of compliance on the construction and bury depth prior to signing 
this agreement.   

 Attorney Bell to touch base with the consulting attorney regarding the points discussed. 

 Arrange a field trip to several locations, spot check, and take pictures to verify the depth. 

 Ask Hotwire for the as-builts of the cable system. 
 
Vice Chair Ryan commented that if they are not complying now, they will not pass 
inspection. 
 
Commissioner Minnaugh asked attorney Bell if the specifications came from Hotwire?  
Attorney Bell replied that he received the verbage directly from the agreement that Hotwire 
has with the HOA.  Commissioner Minnaugh commented that the District needs to place the 
HOA on notice that there is a discrepancy on their own agreement; and that the District is 
trying to compile an agreement with Hotwire/HOA, and that it is unacceptable to the Board.   
 
Commissioner Good stated that from his perspective, Hotwire is not placing in the ground 
what they have submitted as a plan.  He is normally more concerned about the liability that 
would accrue to the property owners.  He said that if Hotwire gives us a set of plans and does 
not follow it, they wind up becoming held responsible for any liabilities that come out of that 
through the courts.  If that does not play itself out, or Hotwire says that they cannot complete 
the job, then that is where the bond comes into play.  He said that the focus should be more on 
the District protecting the property, and with life/safety issues.   
 
Chair Hodges stated that as a rule of thumb, a bond is usually 125% of the work.  He said that 
there is still much work to do on Hotwire’s part.   
 
Commissioner Minnaugh said that Attorney Bell needs to contact Hotwire and make them 
aware that it has come to the District’s attention that in a few areas they are not complying 
with the HOA Agreement; and also let the HOA know what is going on.   
 
District Director Hart said that he can get in touch with the project manager for Hotwire who 
did the construction and schedule an inspection.  He will coordinate with Commissioner 
Goggin so that they can do an extensive review on how deep the trench was made, the 
construction and compliance.  He said that he thinks it would be better if they work through 
the Contractor as they would typically do on any other inspection or follow-up; and he will do 
that in concurrence with discussions outside of those with the Contractor; with homeowners, 
or based on the information that Commissioner Goggin has received.  District Director Hart 
said that during the short walk he did with Commissioner Minnaugh, he saw no signs of any 



 

 

 -7- 

 

issues with the wire; the restoration seemed complete, and there were no signs of settlement 
with the trench.  He reiterated that the District will get confirmation and verify that this is so; 
and that if anything happens to the cable, it is Hotwire’s responsibility; the District has 
absolutely no responsibility regarding the cable.  The District will prepare a punch list and it 
is up to Hotwire to fix it, and if they do not fix it, then the District will call the bond.  He said 
that even though the District has not technically issued a permit on this, they will still deal 
with the Contractor as if the District has issued a permit; and the attorneys and the Board will 
continue working on the Agreement and the ability to issue a permit. 
 
Chair Hodges asked what right does the company or successor have to come onto the 
property?  Attorney Bell replied, “none, without District approval.”  He asked what if a line 
breaks and there is a big hole?  Attorney Bell said that they do not have an easement; but that 
they do have the right to use the easement.   

 
 District Director Hart said that the District will invite Hotwire’s attorney to attend the next 

Board meeting, and will do the same with the HOA.  Attorney Bell said that at this point, the 
District has not invited the consulting attorney to attend this meeting, but he is also thinking 
of inviting him to the next Board meeting.     

 
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 

 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Minnaugh and it was carried unanimously. 

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

   

  Commissioner Mersinger thanked District Director Hart for his quick response on a 

residential problem.  She then asked District Director Hart if the District extends any 

insurance to domestic partners.  District Director Hart replied he is not sure, and that it would 

have to be a policy decision by the Board.  Commissioner Mersinger said she would like the 

Board to discuss this issue.  She said that there are many people who may be in this situation, 

and who may be afraid of retribution if they step forward; and she would like to see that 

everyone in the District’s employment is treated equally.     

 

  District Director Hart replied that with the concurrence of the Board he will review the 

policy as it is currently written and bring something forward.  The Board agreed. 

 

  Commissioner Goggin asked District Director Hart what is happening at Perry Airport where 

there is some digging involved?  District Director Hart replied that the area in question is 

going to be a temporary park and ride facility for the County. 

 

  Commissioner Santana-Woodall commented on the feedback she received from the people 

she invited to the workshop.  They were very pleased with the information and were able to 

go back to their properties and do some minor repairs themselves.   She said she also shared 

the information with the City of Oakland Park and they intend to contact AllState Resource 

Management or District Director Hart about doing something similar in their city.  District 

Director Hart said that he has also reached out with the School Board, and might do a 

workshop with their facilties department.   

 



 

 

 -8- 

 

08.  MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, May 29th at 8:00 a.m.  

 
Adjournment at 9:25 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 












































































































